




2

Emphatic and Affectionate Expressions  

Below is a passage describing in affectionate terms the feelings that a young lover had and has for his beloved.

Me pesa (It grieves me) haberte reprochado cosas  que me constan son mentira. Me avergüenzo de confesarlo, y lo lamento, como también me da pena la pérdida de aquellos días felices en que nos decían que daba gusto ver una pareja tan enamorada como la nuestra; entonces, cuando tú y yo éramos los seres más felices del universo, cuando me daban ganas de subirme a la torre y pregonarlo a son de campanas. Yo no tenía miedo de confesar abiertamente que era tu esclavo, y tú mi dueña y amada.
Ahora, lejos de ti durante unos días, se me figura todo un sueño. ¿Cómo hemos llegado a esta situación? Se me antoja (I have the feeling) que hemos dilapidado el mayor bien del mundo. Ignoro cómo lo vivirás tú, pero yo te diré que nunca podré odiarte, que siempre agradeceré  el bien que me diste, que siempre mi corazón y mi puerta estarán abiertos para ti. Ahora comprendo, con dolor, que un gran cúmulo de pequeñísimas naderías (trifles) sin remover puede obstruir el fluir del más grande amor del mundo. MAS
1. Expressions of Emotion

i. The expression of emotion in Spanish often involves an inversion of subject and object. Where the subject is personalized in English, it often becomes the object in Spanish, and a verb is consequently used in an impersonal manner. There are numerous verbs and expressions that are used in this way:

Me pesa haberle dicho esto


I regret having said that to her

Me consta que es una mentira


I am sure it is a lie

Me tocó el Gordo/el Grande (A)

I won the big prize/jackpot

Me avergüenza admitirlo


I feel ashamed to admit it

Me apena el egoísmo de la gente

I am sorry that people are so selfish

Me gusta pasear por la playa


I like to walk along the beach

Me da gusto ver como los niños se divierten
I like to see how the children enjoy 







 themselves

Me dan ganas de no decir nada

I feel like saying nothing

Me da asco presenciar tal espectáculo
I hate witnessing such a sight
Le da miedo viajar en avión


He’s frightened of flying

Me da vergüenza hablar ante tanta gente
I feel awkward speaking in front of







 so many people

Me dio mucha pena saber que tu padre
I was very sad to learn of your father’s

 había muerto




 death

Note how all these latter expressions involve the verb dar
ii. Some of these expressions may be used in a personalized way:

Se avergüenza de no saber leer

He’s ashamed at not being able to read

Nunca ha gustado de vivir en pueblos
She has never enjoyed living in small

 pequeños (R3)



 towns

Tengo ganas de ir a la playa


I feel like going to the beach

¿Por qué tienes miedo de llegar tarde?
Why are you frightened of arriving late?
iii. Many similar expressions are used reflexively:

Se me figura que quieres pedirme algo
I have the impression you want to ask me







 something

No se me ocurrió preguntárselo

I didn’t think about asking her 

Se nos antojó bañarnos a las doce de

We suddenly thought about having a

 la noche (nadar in M)



 midnight swim

Se nos hizo tarde



It got late 

Se me olvidaba decirte que...


I forgot to say to you that...

For clarity’s sake, when the object is in the third person, repetition occurs with the aid of a preposition:

A él no le da miedo viajar en avión,

He’s not frightened of flying, but his 

 pero a su mujer, sí



 wife is

iv. Emphatic use of personal pronouns

Since verb endings do not always require subject pronouns to be used to make statements clear, they are required in the following circumstances:

When emphasis is needed:

Yo soy mexicana



I am Mexican (and proud of it)

Él, ya no es mi amigo



He’s definitely not my friend now

v. When insistence with repetition is needed with certain verbs used impersonally:

A mi me gusta la toronja

I like grapefruit
vi. When one needs to stress who is/was etc. doing what:

“¿Quién es?” “Soy yo”

“Who is it?” “It’s me”

“¿Quién telefoneó ayer? 

“Who called yesterday? Was it you?”

  ¿Eras tú?”

Ahora el jefe, es él


The boss now is him

vii. Emphatic use of It is I/you etc...who etc

In Spanish the verb of the relative clause is in the same person as the pronoun:

¿Eres tú quien pediste socorro? 
Is it you who asked for help?
but one could hear:

¿Eres tú quien pidió socorro? (R1)

viii. If, what is emphasized is a neuter pronoun, a group of words, nouns of different gender, a noun used without an article or with the indefinite article, the subordinate clause is introduced by lo que, not que:

Es esto lo que lo preocuopa (not que)It’s this that is worrying him

Eran los gritos que daban los niños
It was the children’s shouting that prevented

 lo que la impedían trabajar (not que)
 her from working

Eran la lluvia y el trueno lo que
It was the rain and thunder which kept me

 me quitó el sueño (not que)

 awake

No era rencor lo que lo impulsaba,
It was not resentment that drove him but thirst

 era deseo de justicia
(not que)
 for justice

ix. If the direct object is the name of a person preceded by the personal A, the preposition a is repeated before quien or el que:

¿Es a Pedro a quien/al que veo?
Is it Pedro (whom) I see?

x. If it is a question of animals or things, the subordinate clause is introduced by el que/

la que/los que/las que:

Eran ratones los que cazaba el
It was mice the cat was chasing, not rats
 gato y no ratas (not que)

Era la historia de su vida la que
It was the story of her life that she was telling
 narraba (not que)

xi. Sometimes lo que may introduce the subordinate clause when applied to things:

No es su opinión lo que pidió

It wasn’t her opinion she asked for

xii. If it is a question of a neuter pronoun, the subordinate clause is introduced by lo que:

No es esto lo que te pido

It’s not what I am asking you for

xiii. Notice how prepositions with persons are repeated in highlighting:

Es con Juan con quien estoy 

It’s Juan I am talking to, not you
 hablando, no contigo (not que)

With things:

The subordinate clause is introduced by the preposition and lo que:

Era con una simple cuerda con lo
It was with a simple piece of rope that he 

 que arregló la bicicleta (not que
 sorted out his bicycle

but con la que is possible)

xiv. Notice how adverbs or adverbial expressions are used with repeated prepositions. As immediately above, que alone is not sufficient:

Es a Bogotá adonde iré este verano
 It’s to Bogotá I’ll be going this summer

Por Chihuahua fue por donde pasó
It was through Chihuahua he went

¿Es hasta el año próximo hasta
It’s until next year you’ll live here?

 cuando vivirás aquí?

¿Es para atornillar o destornillar
Is a screwdriver used to screw or unscrew?
 para lo que sirve un destornillador?

No es a reprocharte algo a lo que
It is not to reproach you with something that

 vengo, es a discutir


 I have come, but to discuss

